1987

Monroc, Inc., a Utah corporation v. M. Timmie Sidwell : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

ISSUE PRESENTED FOR APPEAL

1. Did the lower court err in concluding that defendant Timmie Sidwell was not entitled to additional compensation while she worked as a security guard at the Monroc Cottonwood Plant?

PERTINENT STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

1. 29 U.S.C. §206 states the following:

(a) Every employer shall pay to each of his employees who in any work week . . . is employed in an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, wages at the following rates:

(1) . . . not less than \$3.35 an hour after December 31, 1980. . . .

2. 29 U.S.C. §207 states the following:

(a)(2) No employer shall employ any of his employees who in any work week (1) is employed in an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce . . . (c) for a work week longer than forty hours after the expiration of the fourth year from [the effective date of the Fair Labor Standards Amendments of 1961], unless such employee

receives compensation for his employment in excess of the hours above specified at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular rate at which he is employed.

3. 29 U.S.C. §216(b) states the following:

Any employer who violates the provisions of §206 or §207 of this title shall be liable to the employee or employees affected in the amount of their unpaid minimum wages, or their unpaid overtime compensation, as the case may be, and an additional equal amount as liquidated damages . . . the court in such action shall, in addition to any judgment awarded to the plaintiff . . . , allow a reasonable attorneys fee to be paid by the defendant, and costs of the action. . . .

In addition to these specific statutes a number of federal regulations enacted by the U.S. Department of Labor are also relevant to this appeal:

29 C.F.R. §785.14 provides:

Whether waiting time is time worked under the Act depends upon particular circumstances. The determination involves "scrutiny and construction of the agreements between particular parties, appraisal of their practical construction of the working agreement by conduct, consideration of the nature of the service, and its relation to the waiting time, and all of the circumstances. Facts may show that the employee was engaged to wait, or they may show that he waited to be engaged." Such questions "must be determined in accordance with common sense and the general concept of work or employment." (Citations omitted).

29 C.F.R. §785.20 states:

Under certain conditions an employee is considered to be working even though some of his time is spent in sleeping or in certain other activities.

29 C.F.R. §785.21 provides:

An employee who is required to be on duty for less than twenty-four hours is working even though he is permitted to sleep or engage in other personal activities when not busy. A telephone operator, for example, who is required to be on duty for specified

hours is working even though she is permitted to sleep when not busy answering calls. It makes no difference that she is furnished facilities for sleeping. Her time is given to her employer. She is required to be on duty and the time is work time.

29 C.F.R. §785.22 provides:

(a) General. Where an employee is required to be on duty for twenty-four hours or more, the employer and the employee may agree to exclude bona fide meal periods and a bona fide regularly scheduled sleeping period of not more than eight hours from hours worked, provided adequate sleeping facilities are furnished by the employer and the employee can usually enjoy an interrupted night's sleep. If sleeping period is of more than eight hours, only eight hours will be credited. Where no express or implied agreement to the contrary is present, the eight hours of sleeping time and lunch period constitutes hours worked.

29 C.F.R. §785.23 provides:

An employee who resides on his employer's premises on a permanent basis or for extended periods of time is not considered as working all the time he is on the premises. Ordinarily, he may engage in normal private pursuits and thus have enough time for eating, sleeping, entertaining, and other periods of complete freedom from all duties when he may leave the premises for purposes of his own. It is, of course, difficult to determine the exact hours worked under this circumstance and any reasonable agreement of the parties which takes into consideration all of the pertinent facts will be accepted.

29 C.F.R. §516.1 through 516.10 provides:

Every employer shall maintain and preserve payroll or other records containing information and data showing, among other things, the regular hourly rate of pay; the hours worked each work day and the total hours worked each work week; the total daily or weekly straight time earnings or wages and any additions or deductions from wages paid during each pay period; and the total wages paid each pay period.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case

This action was originally commenced by Plaintiff Monroc,

Inc. as an unlawful detainer suit seeking to evict Defendant from the Monroc Cottonwood Plant premises. Defendant counterclaimed alleging a violation of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act as to the wages she was paid during the approximate four years she worked for Monroc.

B. Proceedings Below

This case was tried to the Honorable Scott Daniels on March 2 and March 3, 1987. At the conclusion of the testimony Judge Daniels rendered his opinion in favor of plaintiff Monroc in the amount of \$300 for its unlawful detainer claim and in favor of Monroc, Inc. and against Defendant as to Defendant's Counterclaim of federal wage law violations.

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and a Judgment were subsequently entered by the lower court on March 20, 1987. A copy of these Findings and Judgment is attached herein as part of the appendix to this Brief.

Defendant Sidwell appealed from the denial of any compensation for alleged violation of the federal wage laws. Plaintiff Monroc cross-appealed on the basis that the lower court should have trebled the damages awarded to it.

C. Statement of Facts

The general facts in this case are essentially undisputed. The main area of controversy concerns the scope of Defendant's work with Monroc, Inc. as well as the legal interpretation of the applicable statutes and regulations to this work.

It was stipulated by the parties that Monroc is an enterprise

engaged in interstate commerce and has been so engaged at least since 1982. It has a yearly gross sales of at least \$250,000 since 1982. It is, therefore, an enterprise subject to the minimum wage and overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §201 (Tr. Vol. I, p. 23).

The Monroc Cottonwood Plant is located on 190 acres. Approximately 150 acres of this is fenced. (Tr. Vol I, p. 78). Buildings are centrally located around a large pit. Approximately 20 acres contain the majority of the buildings and is where the operation occurs. (Tr. Vol. I, p. 79). In 1982 Monroc was aware of its responsibility to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act and to pay an hourly minimum wage of \$3.35 in applicable cases. (Tr. Vol. I, p. 113).

In 1976 two boys sneaked onto the Monroc property, fell through the ice, and drowned. From that time on Monroc elected to hire a security person for the Cottonwood facility. (Tr. Vol. I, p. 38).

In 1982 Dean Adams who had been the prior security guard indicated he wished to move to other endeavors. An ad was put in the newspaper which stated that Monroc wanted a part-time security guard who would live on the premises and who would provide their own mobile home. (Tr. Vol. I, p. 138). Defendant Sidwell applied for the job. She interviewed with Mr. Bruce Squires who at that time was the division manager of all the plants and with Mr. Darrell Williams who at that time was the foreman of the Cottonwood facility. Since a major portion of this appeal focuses

upon the agreement reached by the parties as to the scope of Defendant's work, the testimony of Squires, Williams, and the defendant relating to this initial employment agreement will now be examined.

Bruce Squires stated that when Mrs. Sidwell contacted him he told her to go talk to Darrell Williams who was the foreman of the Cottonwood Heights plant. (Tr. Vol. I, p. 138). She came back several hours later and said that Darrell had hired her. At that point he signed her up on the payroll. (Id. at 139).

Mr. Squires stated that Defendant was told that Monroc wanted her continual presence on the property. Monroc wanted someone coming and going so there would be tire tracks in the snow on the weekends and the kids would know that somebody was around. He stated he did not expect her to be there at all times on the weekend. He stated that he told Mrs. Sidwell that she was free to come and go as she pleased. He recalled telling her that if she was going to be gone for a couple of days they would like to know so they could call the sheriff's department and have them patrol the property while she was gone. (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 141-42). Mr. Squires stated that in his view of the agreement she had no responsibilities whenever anyone else was on the property. (Tr. Vol. I, p. 143).

It was his original understanding that she could live there and was entitled to leave at night whenever she wanted to. He did not want to hire somebody, however, who was always going to be away and her semi-retired life-style appealed to him because he

assumed she would be present most of the time. (Id. at 144).

Mrs. Sidwell was instructed to make "rounds" at various times to inspect the property. Squires admitted it was possible she would make those rounds even though other people were present. (Id. at 146). He was mostly concerned during her employment to have her presence on the property and to make sure she checked the gates to be sure they were locked at night. (Id. at 147).

Mr. Squires examined Exhibit D-1 which is entitled "Job Description--Security Guard". While he could not recall specifically going over it with Mrs. Sidwell he assumed he did since his handwriting appears on it. (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 149-150).

During the tenure of Mrs. Sidwell's employment Mr. Squires would occasionally come to the property at various times. He sometimes would come early in the mornings and other times in the afternoons. Most of the time she was there. During one period of time Mr. Squires stated that he specifically asked Timmie to turn off pumps at 2:00 and 4:00 in the morning and she said she would gladly do it and actually performed this task. (Id. at 153).

Darrell Williams was the plant foreman at that time. He interviewed Mrs. Sidwell and outlined the job description as well as the type of individual they were seeking. He states that Exhibit 1 is the job description that he gave to her. This was given to her shortly after she was hired in early 1982. (Id. at 156-57).

He told her that she was hired as a deterrent to vandalism. She was expected to show her presence and to make sure all the

gates were locked. (Id. at 158). Mr. Williams acknowledged that Mrs. Sidwell was supposed to be present on the property and was required to physically live there. (Id. at 167). He informed Mrs. Sidwell that her job was to insure that after operation hours had ceased she was to make sure the property was secure and that no kids were playing on it. She was also expected to make rounds on weekends and holidays. (Tr.Vol. II, pp. 21-23).

Mr. Williams never told Defendant that she had to remain awake during the night to be on guard. He stated that she was free to come and go other than the required rounds on the weekends. She was free to leave between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. during the week and had no responsibilities during that period of time at all. After 5:00 p.m. she was responsible to see that small children did not come on the premises. He never instructed Mrs. Sidwell that her duties terminated when the sun went down. (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 27-32).

Defendant Sidwell testified that during her initial inquiry she visited with Darrell Williams to determine what the exact duties would be if she chose to live on the Monroc property. She stated she took detailed notes as he explained what would be expected. According to Sidwell, Williams told her that she would be expected to be present on the property every night but that she should not be afraid because there would be a night crew present. He told her that although the night crew would be working in the back pit she would be expected to be present after the plant closed at 5:00. (Tr.Vol. II, p. 39). She was told as to the

nighttime duty on the weekdays that she could pretty well live her own life but that she would have to make certain rounds late in the evening. This could include turning pumps on and off in the middle of the night after the night crew had gone. (Id. at 40).

Mr. Williams also explained that Monroc expected her to be on the property every weekend and every holiday while the plant was not in operation. He told her that weekends started at 11:45 on Saturday at which time she would be expected to close the top gate on the south. After the plant closed and the machinery had stopped running she was to close the bottom gate every Saturday at noon. This was to occur whether or not there was a maintenance crew on the site. (Id. at 41). Mr. Williams told her that on Sundays she was to make rounds three times a day (Id. at 43).

Williams told her that she was to be on the lookout for trespassers at all times even when she was not making her rounds. She was responsible for making sure all the buildings were locked during the periods that the plant was not in operation. (Id. at p. 44). Were she to see any trespassers she was not to confront them in a violent manner but was to ask them their business and to take any license plate numbers down when applicable and report them to the police. (Id.).

During these conversations she told Williams that she would have to have time during the weekend to go to the grocery store and sometimes to church. She also told him that she might want to go to the symphony or to the theater. She stated that Mr. Williams said this would be perfectly fine as long as she would

let them know. In that event she was to make sure the gates were locked before she left and to lock the gate behind her when she left and to make another round when she returned. (Id. at 45). She was also told that on very windy nights she was to get up and to go over to the cement plant and make sure that the pilot light of the boiler was still functioning. (Id. at 47).

After beginning her employment she was given the "Job Description--Security Guard" Exhibit 1 (contained herein in the Appendix) by Mr. Williams. He told her that this was her formal job description and added that she was also required to check the boilers during windy days which was not contained in the exhibit. He again told her that during the daylight hours from 7:00 in the morning until 5:00 at night she was not responsible for anything occurring at the plant and that she could obtain a daytime job if she so desired. (Id. at 58).

It was defendant Sidwell's contention that under the terms of the agreement she was required to be present in her mobile home or on the property generally each weeknight after 5:00 p.m. when the plant had ceased operation. In addition, she was required to be on the premises from 12:00 p.m. Saturday until 7:00 a.m. Monday of each weekend as well as to be on the premises during any holiday. (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 181-83).

Between 1982 and 1986 she worked under several different foremans. These included Darrell Williams, Ken Bartel and Jan Vasey. Mrs. Sidwell maintained that as the years progressed she was given more and more responsibilities from the original

agreement. These included controlling the level of the back lake, making more active "rounds", and working at additional times. (Defendant's Exhibit 6).

After several incidents of vandalism had occurred Mrs. Sidwell was asked to submit her recommendations as to how to improve the security at the Monroc plant. On January 21, 1986 she submitted three documents to the management of Monroc concerning her proposals for additional security including additional compensation for her services. One document was a history of her experiences at the Monroc plant including the various duties she had been assigned throughout the years as well as an explanation as to certain events that had occurred. (Defendant's Exhibit 6). A second document submitted on this date was entitled "Some Informal Thoughts About Revised Security Guard Schedule". This document essentially made various proposals and suggestions as to how the security could be improved at the site. In addition, Mrs. Sidwell called various security companies to obtain rates for protection of these facilities. (Plaintiff's Exhibit 11).

The final document submitted on January 24, 1986 was entitled "Analysis: Estimated Dollar Value of My Present Total Work Hours." This document analyzed various levels of security from the level being provided at the time to suggested increased levels. In this document Mrs. Sidwell makes various proposals for increased wages for increased service. (Plaintiff's Exhibit 12). All three of these documents are contained as part of the Appendix herein.

Subsequently, a letter was sent to defendant Sidwell dated

January 28, 1986 which terminated her services in the security function at the Cottonwood Heights plant. (Exhibit P-14). A copy of which is contained in the Appendix herein.

On April 25, 1986 a complaint for unlawful detainer was filed against Defendant alleging that her employment terminated on March 31, 1986 but that she refused to move from the premises. (R. 4-5). On May 5, 1986 an Answer and Counterclaim was filed alleging that Monroc had breached its contract by terminating her services wrongfully since she should have been allowed to continue employment until the gravel pit had been closed. (R. 8-10).

On August 27, 1986, after a new attorney had been retained, an Amended Counterclaim was filed on behalf of Defendant. In this Counterclaim Defendant for the first time asserted her claim of inadequate wages under the Federal Fair Labor Standard Act. (R. 48-54).

As previously noted, Judgment was rendered on behalf of plaintiff Monroc and against Defendant as to both the Complaint and Counterclaim.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The lower court erred in denying any benefits to Defendant under the Fair Labor Standards Act. First, the court erred in concluding that Defendant was not required as a condition of her employment to essentially be present on the property during certain periods of time during the week. This finding is without adequate evidentiary support and is clearly erroneous.

Second, the lower court incorrectly applied the principles of

federal employment law to the facts of this case. The court concluded that because Defendant had opportunity to engage in personal activities during her presence on Plaintiff's property that she automatically was not entitled to any claim of benefits. Under federal law, an analysis must be made of each case and there is no automatic exclusion merely because of personal activities.

ARGUMENT

Since this case was tried to the lower court, sitting without a jury, certain elementary principles of appellate review apply. First, the Findings of Fact must provide a basis for determining whether there is a rational basis for the court's decision. Proper Findings are essential to enable an appellate court to perform its function of assuring that the Findings support the Judgment and that the evidence supports the Findings. Romrell v. Zions Bank, 611 P.2d 392 (Utah 1980).

Next, an appellate court does not accord any deference to the Conclusions of Law of the trial court sitting without a jury in reviewing such Conclusions of Law for correctness. An appellate court is as capable of determining a question of law as is the trial court and therefore is not bound by its conclusions. Wessel v. Erickson Landscaping Co., 711 P.2d 250 (Utah 1985).

Findings of Fact that are conclusions of law are treated as such on appeal and will stand only if there are other Findings of Fact sufficient to support them. Town Concrete Pipe of Washington, Inc. v. Redford, 717 P.2d 1384 (Wash. App. 1986).

An appellate court must give great weight to the findings

made and the inference drawn by the trial judge but it must reject his findings if it considers them to be clearly erroneous. A finding is clearly erroneous when although there is evidence to support it, the reviewing court on the entire evidence is left with the definite and firm conviction that a mistake has been committed. State v. Walker, 743 P.2d 191 (Utah 1987); Adair v. Bracken, 70 Utah Adv. Rpt. 39 (Ct. App. 11-24-87).

Applying these principles to the following case requires reversal.

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN CONCLUDING THAT
DEFENDANT WAS NOT ENTITLED TO ANY ADDITIONAL
COMPENSATION FOR HER EMPLOYMENT WITH THE
PLAINTIFF.

The lower court in its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made several erroneous findings. The erroneous Findings of Fact are as follows:

Finding No. 7: Plaintiff and Defendant agreed that Defendant would reside on the premises, although it was not a condition of her employment that she be present on the premises on a full-time basis or during any certain times (except to perform some of her specific duties, the timing of some of which assignments was freely altered by Defendant from time to time).

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