1987

Monroc, Inc., a Utah corporation v. M. Timmie Sidwell : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

Summary of the Argument:

The Trial Court's rejection of Sidwell's FLSA claims was proper. This case is one which turns primarily on the facts. In the preparation of the Trial Court's Findings of Fact, attorneys for both parties gave great attention to those Findings, working on several drafts before finally submitting an approved version to the Trial Court for signature. As indicated

in the Statement of Facts, above, each of the Trial Court's findings is supported by substantial and competent evidence in the record. The Appellant Sidwell has failed to marshal the evidence supporting the Trial Court's Findings and has also then failed to demonstrate why those Findings should be rejected. This Court should not presume to retry the case on appeal, but should accept those supported Findings of the Trial Court, especially when the contents of those Findings were so carefully considered and so strongly supported by the record. The Findings of Fact support the Conclusions of Law which the Trial Court also adopted after careful consideration by the parties' attorneys. Existing regulations and applicable case law serve as clear precedent for the ultimate conclusions of the Trial Court.

The Trial Court did err, however, when he failed to treble the damages sustained by Monroc due to Sidwell's unlawful detainer of the premises. Utah law leaves no discretion for a judge in this regard; he must treble damages incurred after the notice in an unlawful detainer situation.

A R G U M E N T

I. IF THE FINDINGS OF FACT OF THE TRIAL COURT ARE SUPPORTED IN THE RECORD, THEY MAY NOT BE SET ASIDE ON REVIEW.

A. The Findings of Fact Which Were Adopted by the Trial Court Are All Supported in the Record.

Monroc has incorporated verbatim all of the Trial Court's Findings of Fact, adding citations to the Record for each point

and subpoint. See above. This detailed approach has been followed in this Brief because of the significance of those facts to the outcome of this appeal. As those reproduced Findings show, each of the Trial Court's findings is premised upon substantial and competent evidence in the Record.

Appellant Sidwell ignores that evidence and argues (Sidwell Brief, pp. 14-16) that the Trial Court erroneously found that Mrs. Sidwell was not required to be physically present at the work site during any specified hours. Attempting to support this argument, Sidwell cites three Findings (Nos. 7, 10, and 11), emphasizing certain language from each, which Sidwell asserts are contrary to the "clear weight of the evidence." This argument fails from the outset as the language of the Findings shows.

Sidwell's Brief points to the following passages as alleged error (Brief, pp. 14-15):

From Finding No. 7:

. . . it was not a condition of her employment that she be present on the premises on a full time basis or during any certain times (except to perform some of her specified duties, the timing of some of which assignments was freely altered by Defendant from time to time. [Emphasis in Sidwell Brief.]

From Finding No. 10:

Defendant was free to come and go as she wished, . . . [Emphasis in Sidwell Brief.]

From Finding No. 11:

Defendant's actual duties under the agreement with Plaintiff approximated no more than eight to ten hours per week . . . ; and the other times when Defendant was living on the

premises did not constitute hours which were
controlled by the plaintiff or its business.
[Emphasis in Sidwell Brief.]

Despite the portions emphasized by Sidwell's Brief, the remainder of the foregoing passages clearly indicates that the Trial Court found that some of Mrs. Sidwell's time was indeed required on a regular basis. The Trial Court found that she was compensated for that time at lawful rates. See Findings No. 11 and No. 12.

Sidwell's Brief, however, attempts to mislead the reader by suggesting that the Trial Court did not recognize the fact that some of Mrs. Sidwell's time was required on a regular basis. The misleading assertion is contained in the Brief at pp. 15-16:

These Findings and Conclusions are erroneous for the following two reasons. First, the clear weight of the evidence shows that Defendant Sidwell was in fact required to be physically present at the property during certain specified hours during the week. . . .

The Trial Court found (and Monroc does not dispute) that of course Mrs. Sidwell was required to be present during certain times. This was never contested at the hearing and the Trial Court adopted Findings so stating.

The effort in Sidwell's Brief to mislead is compounded in that portion of the Brief which underscores only certain parts of Findings 7, 10, and 11. The underscoring fails to include the qualifying language, without which the Findings are obviously incomplete. For example, Sidwell's Brief does not emphasize the words of Finding No. 7 which state that Mrs. Sidwell's presence

was not required during any certain times except to perform some of her specific duties. Also, in referring to Finding No. 11, Sidwell fails to emphasize that her actual duties under the agreement with Monroc approximated no more than eight to ten hours per week.

The attempt to mislead is further compounded by other statements in the Brief (at pp. 19, 26) which suggest that the Trial Court did not find that Mrs. Sidwell's "presence" around her home was anticipated. However, Findings 5, 6, and 7 each make reference to the fact that when Mrs. Sidwell was hired she was expected to live in the mobile home located on the Monroc property.

Sidwell's Brief, however, doesn't seem to contest the important Finding of the Trial Court that Mrs. Sidwell was not required to be on the premises on a full-time basis. Instead, Sidwell's Brief nit-picks the Findings, expecting this Court on review to quibble over the degree of freedom which Mrs. Sidwell enjoyed while living on the Monroc property.

In Sidwell's own proposed supplemental findings, Sidwell urged the Trial Court to hold that "during normal hours of plant operation, Defendant [Sidwell] was completely free to come and go as she wished, and was free to pursue her own individual interests, including accepting full-time employment with another employer and engaging in other normal, private pursuits with complete freedom from all duties or responsibilities." [R.209-10] Thus, Appellant in essence accepted some of the very

Findings which she now wishes to contest.

In making his ruling with respect to the degree of freedom enjoyed by Mrs. Sidwell, the Trial Court relied upon the Record, which included the following statements (among others):

(Testimony of Stanton Wilson, Tr. 54)

Q [by Kennedy] Now, in this document [P-12, which was written by Mrs. Sidwell herself], did the Defendant [Sidwell] attempt to set forth the amount of time that she spent on active guard duties each week?

* * *

A Yes. Middle of the second page she talks about there--well, all the way through it, but it culminates there on in Category D, she says seven hours and 50 minutes.

(Testimony of Foreman Bruce Squires, Tr. 141-42)

Q [by Kennedy] What were those duties?

A Well, they would vary. There was no set routine. When she was hired, she was told that what we really wanted on the premises was her presence, someone coming and going so there would be tire tracks in the snow and on the weekends the kids would know there was someone around because, you know Monroc had, had a problem with, you know the kids on the pond.

Q Did you expect her to be there all the time on the weekends?

A No. . . . And again, verbal, you know, number of years ago--I mean, it was in 1980 or '82, I mean, but--and just told her she needed to be there and that so there was a presence that she was free to come and go as she pleased.

Q She was free as she pleased?

A As she pleased.

Q And you told her that?

A Yes. I also recall telling her that, though, she is going to be gone, say a couple of days, we would like to know about it. And then I--or the foreman or someone could make some trips down there occasionally, you know, just to check. * * *

(Squires testimony, Tr. 151, 267)

Q [by Kennedy] Concerning what Mrs. Sidwell had indicated as her active guard duties, how many hours a week would you estimate would be required in performing those active guard duties that she defines in her memo [P-12]?

A Five to ten, maybe.

* * *

Q Mr. Squires, you've also been here and heard Mrs. Sidwell's testimony. Did you ever place any restrictions on her coming and going as a part of her job?

A No, sir.

(Testimony of Foreman Darrell Williams, Tr. 162, 164-65; R. 248, 252):

Q [by Kennedy] Was it your understanding that she was free to come and go as she pleased?

A Yes.

Q And in fact, she did come and go as she pleased, did she not, during the period of time that you had responsibility over her employment?

A Yes.

* * *

Q Did you contemplate that she had been performing any active guard duties when she was asleep?

A No.

Q Did you contemplate that she would be performing any active guard duties when she

was at the University attending classes?

A No.

Q Did you contemplate that she would be performing any active guard duties when she was employed full time at another job?

A No.

Q In her exhibit that she gave to the company, which I think is marked as P-12, she indicates that's the total time that she spent each week making her active guard duties, amounting to about seven hours and 50 minutes. From your knowledge of her duties, does that sound correct to you? Is it high or low or how would you characterize her estimate?

A Well, it might be a little high, but I couldn't say for certain.

* * *

Q Okay. All right. Now, knowing what you know about her duties, can you tell the Court how much time it would take over the course of a week on the average to perform all of the duties that she had to do?

A Five, six hours. Something like that.

* * *

Q Okay. Was Mrs. Sidwell ever instructed by you that she had to remain awake during the night to be on guard?

A Never.

Q Was she free to come and go other than the one round a day and two rounds on weekends that you say she was asked to perform?

A Yes.

Q And did she in fact come and go as she pleased?

A Yes.

(Mrs. Sidwell's Testimony, Tr. 183, 221-22)

Q [by Merkling] Why aren't you making a claim for those hours then?

A Because I was told by Mr. Darrell Williams when he gave me my job description that I would not be responsible for security duties or even for my presence on Saturday morning until 11:45.

Q How about the weekdays?

A On the weekdays, Mr. Darrell Williams, as I stated, told me that I was perfectly free to get myself a daytime job because it was very evident--

Q Well--

A Okay. That I was very free to get a daytime job, then.

* * *

Q [by Kennedy] Mrs. Sidwell, did you, did you include in the hours that you've listed here as hours worked [for compensation], time that you spent that you were actually asleep?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q And you also included time where you were, maybe, eating dinner?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q And maybe over the weekends, when you eating lunch?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q And other meals?

A Yes.

Q You also included the time that you spent preparing meals?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q You included time that you spent attending to other personal matters; for example, taking a bath or shower?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q You included time that you spent even, maybe, running some errands?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q And you included time that you spent attending church?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q And you included time that you spent attending the symphony?

A Yes.

* * *

Q Did you include the time that you spent studying for these classes that you attended?

A Yes, Mr. Kennedy.

Q In fact, really, you've included time for a variety of matters where you were pursuing, oh, one personal interest or another in this time?

A I was living there, Mr. Kennedy.

Q I understand. But you included that, haven't you?

A Yes, I have.

(Testimony of another Foreman, Jann Vasey, Tr. 245-46, 250, 261-62, 266)

Q [by Kennedy] During that period of time [day in and day out basis], were you working in a position where you could see what was happening on the premises there at the site?

A Yes, I was.

Q Did you ever see Mrs. Sidwell make any rounds during that period of time?

A No, I did not.

Q You became her supervisor in May of 19--
let me ask you, did that bother you at all?

A No.

Q Why not?

A To the best of my knowledge she just lived
there and could come and go as she pleased.

Q You became her supervisor in May of 1985,
approximately?

A Yes.

Q And at that time did you change her duties
in any way?

A No, I did not.

Q Did you observe whether she made any
rounds at all after you became her
supervisor?

A No, I did not.

* * *

Q Did it upset you that she wasn't there
when you called to have her shut the pump
off?

A No, not at all.

Q Why not?

A Well, she just lived there. She could
come and go as she pleased.

Q Now, did you ever criticize her for not
being there under these circumstances?

A No, I did not.

* * *

Q When she became a concern of yours, did
you keep any records of when she was or
wasn't there?

A No, I did not.

Q Why not?

A I wasn't that worried about her comings and goings.

Q Did you ever restrict her in any way with respect to her comings and goings?

A No, I did not.

* * *

Q Did you ever indicate to Mrs. Sidwell she had to get permission in order to leave?

A No, I did not.

Q So, on her own she called you and said I'm going to be gone?

A That is correct.

The final segment of Mr. Vasey's testimony, quoted above, was omitted from Sidwell's Brief, which referred to some questions from the Court immediately preceding it. On the basis of the partial quotation, Appellant suggested an inconsistency in Mr. Vasey's recollection. (Brief p. 23.) That alleged inconsistency, however, disappears when Mr. Vasey's complete statement is considered.

Consequently, the Findings of the Trial Court are supported by substantial and competent evidence in the record. The inadequate attempts by Sidwell's Brief to question a small selection of those Findings cannot serve as cause for this Court on review to reject those Findings.

**B. The Credibility of Mrs. Sidwell's
 Testimony Was Called into Serious Question.**

In addition to the overwhelming weight of the evidence supporting the Trial Court's Findings, it must be noted that the Appellant's main witness (herself) was shown to be unreliable and not credible. The following passage from the Transcript demonstrates these points:

THE COURT: Wait a minute. He [Mr. Kennedy] just asked you a very simple question. Was that the question and the answer on that day [when your deposition was taken]?

THE WITNESS: This is what I said, Mr. Kennedy.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: This is not what I am willing to hold to.

In addition to such evasive and equivocating testimony, the Trial Court also heard the admission from Mrs. Sidwell and her attorney that she had been convicted of a crime, theft of property from a prior employer. (Tr. 208) That evidence had been brought to light by Monroc to impeach the credibility of Mrs. Sidwell under the rules of evidence.

Hence, the Trial Court had more than an adequate basis for rejecting all of the contentions asserted by Mrs. Sidwell. She simply was not a credible witness.

C. Under Accepted Standards of Review, the Appellant Sidwell Failed to Meet her Burden To Challenge the Trial Court's Findings of Fact.

The Utah Supreme Court and this Court have recently and repeatedly restated the standard for appellate review of Findings of Fact. That standard is that a reviewing court will not overturn a trial Judge's Findings of Fact unless such Findings are clearly erroneous. In viewing the evidence, the reviewing court must be left with the definite and firm conviction that a mistake has been committed. Ball v. Volken, 741 P.2d 974, 64 Utah Adv. Rep. 8 (1987). Findings are presumed valid and correct as long as there is sufficient support for them in the evidence. Crimson v. Western Company, 742 P.2d 1219, 65 Utah Adv. Rep. 26 (Ct. App. 1987). A heavy burden rests upon the Appellant to marshal the evidence supporting the Trial Court's Findings and then to demonstrate that such evidence, when compared to the contrary evidence, is so lacking as to warrant the conclusion that clear error has been committed. Newmeyer v. Newmeyer, 69 Utah Ap. Rep. 32 (1987). This Court has stated that the Appellant is required to marshal all of the evidence supporting the Trial Judge's Findings. This requirement is neither elective nor optional. Nor will the reviewing court perform this task for Appellant. Fitzgerald v. Critchfield, 67 Utah Adv. Rep. 15 (Ct. App. 1987). To mount a successful attack on the Trial Court's Findings of Fact, Appellant must marshal all the evidence in support of the Trial Court's Findings and then demonstrate that even viewing it in the light most favorable to the court below,

the evidence is insufficient to support the Findings. Id.

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